
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk 

 

Development 
Control Board 

 
 

Councillor D E Hunnisett (Chairman) 
Councillor I D Armitt (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillor  E Ben - Moussa 

Councillor S H Brown 
Councillor J Burrell 

Councillor S Butterfill 
Councillor B Garden 
Councillor K Grehan 

Councillor T Maddison 
Councillor C S McLean 

Councillor D J Mote 
Councillor A Oakley - Dow 

Councillor T Oliver 
Councillor R S L Perfitt 
Councillor M I Peters 

Councillor L J Reynolds 
Councillor Mrs R F Storey 

 
 
    
 

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on 

 
Thursday 10 October 2019 at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 

 
  



 

INTRODUCTION 
The function of the Development Control Board is to consider planning applications and also to take 
enforcement action against breaches of planning control and related matters.   
 
AGENDA LAYOUT 
Reports on a planning application describes the application site, the proposed development, any 
relevant planning history, responses from those who have been consulted on the application along with 
any other comments received, and, lastly, a report on the main planning issues relevant to the 
application.  The reports also contain a recommendation to the Board Members, generally either for 
refusal or approval. The recommendation appears at the beginning and at the end of each report. There 
is a narrative by the Planning Officer of his/her consideration and the reason for refusal, or the 
conditions to be attached to an approval, are set out at the end of the report.  
 
UPDATE 
The main agenda is printed some time before the Board meeting. The Update is a document which is 
prepared the day before the meeting and circulated to Members. It provides information about 
applications to be considered at the meeting which has emerged since the agenda was printed. This 
could include further comments from interested parties, recent changes to the application and 
amendments to the recommendation. Copies of the Update are made available to the public. 
 
THE MEETING 
The Chairman and Vice-Chairman sit on the dais at the front of the Council Chamber.  Planning Officers 
sit on their right and a legal representative and the Committee Co-ordinator usually sit on their left.   
 
The Chairman may take agenda items in an order which reflects the degree of public interest.    
 
The Chairman will propose each item and invite Members to indicate if they would like to discuss. If an 
item is not proposed for discussion, the Chairman will ask Members to vote in accordance with the 
Officer recommendation. However, those items where a member of the public has registered to speak 
against the Officer recommendation will be discussed by the Board.  There will be no need for public 
speakers to address the Board if the speaker was going to support the Officer recommendation.  
 
For items for discussion, the Planning Officer will usually make a presentation, describing the proposal, 
outlining the main planning considerations and concluding with the recommendation.  Where a request 
to speak has been made by 12 noon on the designated date, and granted, the Chairman will invite 
speakers to sit in a designated area equipped with microphones. Where the Officer’s recommendation is 
to allow the application, the objectors will have the opportunity to speak first, followed by any supporter.  
The reverse order will apply in cases where the Officer’s recommendation is that the application be 
refused. Each speaker will be allowed three minutes to make their points.   
 
Members or Officers may clarify any points with the speaker(s) before Members consider the 
application. Thereafter, no public speaking will be allowed and the speaker(s) will be asked to return to 
the public gallery. 
 
The Chairman has the discretion to curtail or extend speaking in individual cases if it is considered 
appropriate. 
 
SITE MEETINGS 
If it becomes apparent during the Board’s deliberations on an application that the Board cannot fully 
appreciate the impact of a proposal without seeing the site first, Members may decide to defer the 
application so that a site meeting can be held.  If agreed, the item will not be discussed further at this 
meeting.  



 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL BOARD 
 

 AGENDA 
 

Thursday 10 October 2019 
 
 
Update 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board 
or Managing Director. 
 

 

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 
September 2019  

(Pages 3 - 8) 

4. References from other committees   

5. Urgent Items   

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there 
are any urgent items and their position on the agenda. 
 

 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION IN PUBLIC 

6. 19/00561/COU  
 Woodside, Hook Green Lane, Wilmington, Kent  

(Pages 9 - 20) 

 Proposal 
The change of use and extension of an existing stable block to 
provide a three bedroom dwelling together with associated 
alterations to elevations. 
 
Recommendation 
Refusal. 
 

 

7. 19/01132/FUL  
 72 Wilmot Road, Dartford, Kent.  

(Pages 21 - 26) 

 Proposal 
The erection of a two storey side, and single storey rear, 
extension. 
 
Recommendation. 
Defer decision for delegated approval. 
 

 

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION IN PUBLIC 

https://publicaccess.dartford.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=PQ28GVBQGGX00
https://publicaccess.dartford.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=PVYNOKBQJ7J00


 

8. Decisions Taken Under Delegated Powers  (Pages 27 - 44) 

 



UPDATE 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL BOARD 

10th October 2019 
 

 
Item 6 Woodside, Hook Green Lane, Wilmington 19/00561/COU 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
Errata: the first sentence should read that the application site is located ….”just to the 
west of its junction with Broad Lane and Rowhill Road.” 
 
NEIGHBOUR NOTIFICATION 
A further representation has been received from a neighbouring resident who wrote in 
previously, and is reported in the agenda report as neither objecting or supporting the 
application. The further representation confirms that they are in support of the 
application. They advise that Woodside sits on an unlit and unadopted road, which 
residents maintain. They advise that cars park on this road and often leave rubbish. 
They consider that the change to a residential use would deter this behaviour and 
would make surrounding residents feel safer with the stables being turned into a home 
rather than sitting empty. 
 

 

Page 1 Supplementary Information



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 2



1 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL BOARD 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Development Control Board held on Thursday 12 
September 2019 at 7.00 pm 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor D E Hunnisett (Chairman) 
Councillor I D Armitt JP (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor E H Ben Moussa 
Councillor S H Brown 
Councillor J Burrell 
Councillor S P Butterfill 
Councillor M J Davis 
Councillor L H K Edie 
Councillor B Garden 
Councillor K J Grehan 
Councillor T A Maddison 
Councillor C S McLean 
Councillor T Oliver 
Councillor M I Peters 
Councillor L J Reynolds 
Councillor Mrs R F Storey 
 

 
35. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Mote, Oakley - 
Dow and Perfitt.  Councillor Perfitt expressed particular regrets at being 
absent as he was undertaking an unforeseen Mayoral engagement. 
 
The Board noted the appointment of Councillors Davis and Edie as 
substitutes for Councillors Mote and Oakley – Dow. 
 
The Chairman welcomed Councillors Gaskin and Oguntope to the meeting.  
 
The Board was informed that Councillor Gaskin was in attendance as she had 
sought permission to address the Board as local ward member in respect of 
application 19/00856/COU relating to the change of use of 35 -37, Temple Hill 
Square, Dartford, Kent.  DA1 5HY.  Councillor Oguntope was attending as an 
observer. 
 
 

36. FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE AND THE ARRANGEMENTS AND 
CONSTRAINTS RELATING TO FILMING OR RECORDING OF THE 
MEETING  
 
The Clerk to the Board explained the Fire Evacuation procedure and the 
Constraints and arrangements relating to the filming or recording of the 
meeting. 
 
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



DEVELOPMENT CONTROL BOARD 
 

THURSDAY 12 SEPTEMBER 2019 
 

 

2 
 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

37. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest received from Board Members, 
substitutes or Council Members in attendance. 
 

38. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 8  
AUGUST 2019  
 

  RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the Development Control Board held on 8 August 2019, 
be confirmed as a correct record of that meeting. 
 

39. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  
 
It was reported that no reference from any other Committee had been 
received 
 

40. URGENT ITEMS  
 
The Board noted that there were no urgent items to consider. 
 

41. 19/00657/REM   
 FORMER GREENHITHE CLINIC, KNOCKHALL CHASE, GREENHITHE, 
KENT.  DA9 9EN  
 
The Board received a report on the reserved matters relating to planning 
permission DA/18/01573/OUT which was granted Outline Permission under 
delegated Authority on 21 February 2019.    
 
The reserved matters related to scale, layout, appearance and landscape 
(condition 1) and the submission of details pursuant to conditions 4 (levels of 
land), 5 (water efficiency), 7 (storage of bicycles), 8 (car parking spaces), 10 
(waste/refuse collection), 11 (hard and soft landscaping including a 
programme for its management) for the erection of four 2 bed houses and one 
4 bed house (5 units in total). 
 
Members’ attention was drawn to the update circulated. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the application for reserved matters be approved subject to the 
conditions, reasons and informatives set out in the report. 
 
 
 
 

Page 4Agenda Item 3



DEVELOPMENT CONTROL BOARD 
 

THURSDAY 12 SEPTEMBER 2019 
 
 

3 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

42. 19/00622/REM  
 PROSPECT PLACE, SHELLBANK LANE, BEAN, KENT.  DA2 8AX  
 
The Board received a report on the reserved matters relating to planning 
permission DA/18/01367/OUT which was granted Outline Permission on 14 
February 2019. 
 
The reserved matters relate to the appearance, landscaping, layout and scale 
pursuant to condition 1 of outline planning permission DA/18/01367/OUT for 
the demolition of the existing dwelling and outbuildings, and the erection of 2 
pairs of semi-detached 3 bed dwellings (4 units in total) with associated 
parking and amenity space, and submission of details pursuant to condition 7 
(land levels), 8 (water efficiency), 10 (cycle storage), 11 (parking spaces), 12 
(materials), 13 (Waste storage) and 14 (landscaping).  
 
Members’ attention was drawn to the update circulated 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the application relating to reserved matters be approved subject to the 
conditions and reasons set out in the report. 
 

43. 19/00856/COU  
 35 - 37 TEMPLE HILL SQUARE, DARTFORD,  KENT.  DA1 5HY  
 
The Board received a report on an application for the change of use of 35 
Temple Hill Square from Use A1 (retail/dry cleaners) to Use A3 (restaurant 
and cafe) to provide ancillary seating for the existing cafe at 37 Temple Hill 
Square, and a new shop front. 
 
Members’ attention was drawn to the update circulated. 
 
The Chairman introduced Mrs Rajinder Kaur who spoke opposing the 
application and Mr Cevedet Cesuroglu who supported it. 
 
The Chairman gave permission to Councillor Gaskin, as one of the local ward 
members to address the Board on this application. 
 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Application be approved subject to the conditions and reasons set 
out in the report. 
 

44. 19/00023/COU  & 19/00100/LBC  
 UNIT 4 TWISTLETON COURT PRIORY HILL, DARTFORD, KENT.  DA1 
2EN  
 
The Board considered a planning application for the conversion of a building 
into 6 residential units with ancillary external works to provide new doors for 

Page 5 Agenda Item 3



DEVELOPMENT CONTROL BOARD 
 

THURSDAY 12 SEPTEMBER 2019 
 

 

4 
 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

bike storage, together with a Listed Building Consent application for external 
works. 
 
Members’ attention was drawn to the update circulated. 
 
Members expressed concern that the wooden construction of the building 
could present a significant fire risk to residents. The Development Manager 
advised that this is a matter that would be considered under Building 
Regulations. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the applications be approved subject to   
 

1. the Conditions, Reasons and Informatives contained in the report; and,  
 

2. the addition of a further Informative recommending a high standard of 
fire suppression be installed in the building.  

 
  
 
 

45. 18/01598/FUL  
THE FORESTERS PUBLIC HOUSE, 235 HIGH ROAD, WILMINGTON , 
KENT. DA2 7BU  
 
The Board received a report on an application for the demolition of “The 

Foresters” Public House and the erection of a two storey building to provide 

an A1 retail convenience store, together with the erection of two 2 bed 

dwelling houses, the reconfiguration of the car park, the widening of the site 

access, the construction of bin/cycle storage and associated landscaping 

work. 

 

RESOLVED 

 

That the application be refused for the reasons set out in the Report. 

 
46. DRAFT DARTFORD ENFORCEMENT PLAN  

 
The Board received a report presenting the Council’s approach for the 
enforcement of planning matters in Dartford, as recommended in the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2019. 
 
It was reported that the document provided an opportunity for the Council to 
set out how it would investigate planning complaints, monitor development 
and decide on what action to take. It was noted that there was no change to 
the way the service operates. 
 

Page 6Agenda Item 3



DEVELOPMENT CONTROL BOARD 
 

THURSDAY 12 SEPTEMBER 2019 
 
 

5 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

Concern was expressed that Ward Councillors are sometimes involved in 
decisions relating to the expediency of taking enforcement action in their 
Ward. This was part of the delegations given to officers to close enforcement 
cases. 
  
It was noted however that if Members did not agree that the enforcement case 
could be closed then the matter would be referred to the Board for 
consideration. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
The Board endorsed the report and the Enforcement Plan 2019. 
 

47. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PERFORMANCE MONITORING  
 
The Board received a report on the performance of the Development 
Management Section for the quarter April to June 2019 and noted that the 
data reflected performance in excess of targets. 
 

48. UPDATE ON APPEALS AND DEVELOPMENT WHERE DBC IS NOT THE 
DETERMINING AUTHORITY.  
 
The Board received and noted a report setting out details of development 
within the Borough where planning decisions are being taken by another 
Authority. 
 

49. DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED POWERS  
 
Members received, for information, a report on the decisions taken by Officers 
under delegated powers for the period 28 July to 28 August 2019. 
 

  RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

 
The meeting closed at 8.06 pm 

 
  

 
 

Councillor D E HUNNISETT 
CHAIRMAN 

 

Page 7 Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



          
   DEVELOPMENT CONTROL BOARD 
 
    10 October 2019 
 
Reference: 19/00561/COU    Officer: Mrs Sonia Bunn 
 
Location: Woodside 

Hook Green Lane 
Wilmington 
Kent 
DA2 7AJ 

 
Proposal: Change of use and extension of existing stable block to provide a 3 bedroom 

dwelling together with associated alterations to elevations 
 
Applicant: Mr W Taylor 

 
Agent:  Graham Simpkin Planning/Paul Nicholls 
 
Parish / Ward: Wilmington / Maypole & Leyton Cross 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Refuse planning permission 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
(1) The application site is located within the Green Belt to the north of Hook Green Lane, 
just to the east of its junction with Broad Lane and Rowhill Road. It is therefore mid-way between 
the western edge of Wilmington village and Birchwood Road. The site adjoins a private access 
track on its eastern boundary which is also a public right of way (DR118) and is surrounded by 
tree belts and open fields. 
 
(2) The application site comprises a stables block situated at the south east corner of a 
field used as paddock for recreational use of horses.  The paddock is not part of the application 
site but is shown to be in the ownership of the applicant. The access to the application site also 
serves this paddock.  A small area of land within the ownership of the applicant, but outside of 
the application site sits between the application site and Hook Green Lane. The stable existing 
on site currently is shown to comprise of 4 stables, a kitchen, toilet and storage plus a small 
lean-to storage building. The building did not appear to be in use as stables at the time of the 
officer site visit.  
 
THE PROPOSAL 
 
(3) The application seeks permission to extend and convert the existing stable building to 
a 3-bed bungalow. The stable building is L-shaped and extensions are proposed along two of 
sides of the building to infill the existing overhanging eaves together with the removal of the 
lean-to and a 1.8m extension on the western end of the building. In addition a large gable end 
porch vestibule is proposed and roof lights are proposed in the eastern roof slope. New windows 
are proposed to the southern and eastern elevations of the building, to provide outlook to 
bedrooms and living spaces. The existing hard standing area for the stables is proposed to be 
used as car parking in connection with the dwelling. A patio is proposed around the western 
arm of the building and the plans show removal vegetation between the building and the access 
track with some indication of changes in ground levels along this eastern elevation.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9 Agenda Item 6



RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
(4) 99/00437/FUL Demolition of existing barn and temporary siting of a mobile home.
 29.07.1999  

Refused 
 

(5) 98/00596/FUL Erection of a detached 2 bedroom chalet bungalow 27.11.1998
 Refused 
 
(6) 82/00240/FLA1 Block Of Stables, Tack Room, Store & W.C  

Permission granted 
 
COMMENTS FROM ORGANISATIONS  
 
(7) Kent Fire and Rescue Service: No comment.  
 
(8) Kent Highways: No comment. Application does not meet criteria to warrant Highway 
Authority involvement. 
 
(9) Environmental Health: No observations or concerns.    
 
(10) Wilmington Parish Council: The site is situated in the Metropolitan Green Belt and is 
considered to be inappropriate development with no very special reasons given as to why the 
NPPF and Dartford Local Plan should be overridden. Notwithstanding the absence of 'very 
special circumstances' the size and bulk of the proposed development would be such as to 
have an adverse effect on the openness of the Green Belt. The proposal would also constitute 
an unnecessary back-land development resulting in the loss of amenity space. 
 
NEIGHBOUR NOTIFICATION 
 
(11) 7 Neighbour consultation letters were sent in relation to the proposals. A total of 7 
representations have been received from local residents, of which 3 are in support, 1 is a neutral 
comment and 3 are objections to the proposals. Objections are summarised as follows: 

- The proposals are similar to an application which was previously refused and 
nothing has changed since then. 

- The stables and outbuilding are on Green Belt Land and thus should not be 
taken out of the Green Belt to accommodate this application.  

- If access was allowed out onto Hook Green Lane then it would be very 
dangerous as it is close to a blind corner where the speed limit is 60 mph. 

- The proposals would represent a precedent for further conversion of 
agricultural buildings in the greenbelt to residential.  

 
(12) The support for the application is summarised below: 

- No objection to turning the building to residential use.  
- As long as the building does not change it's size greatly and matches the 

character of the village the proposals are supported.  
- No objection provided that the remaining land is only used for domestic and 

agricultural use, and that all trees and hedging remain in situ.  
- An additional resident will help reduce burglaries and suspicious activities 

along the lane.  
- Applicant would be a welcome new resident in the local community. 

 
RELEVANT POLICIES 
 
(13) Adopted Dartford Core Strategy adopted 2011 

CS1: Spatial pattern of development 
CS10: Housing Provision  
CS13: Green Belt  
CS17: Design of homes 

 

Page 10Agenda Item 6



(14) Adopted Dartford Development Policies Plan 2017 
DP1: Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
DP2: Good Design 
DP3: Transport Impacts of Development 
DP4: Transport Access and Design 
DP5: Environmental and Amenity Protection  
DP6: Sustainable Residential Locations  
DP7: Borough Housing Stock and Residential Amenity  
DP8: Residential Design in New Development  
DP22: Green Belt in the Borough 

 
(15) Dartford Parking Standards Supplementary Planning Document (Parking SPD) 2012 
 
(16) Dartford Housing Windfall Supplementary Planning Document (Windfall SPD) 2014 
 
(17) The National Planning Policy Framework(NPPF) is also a material consideration and 
paragraphs 133 to 147 are particularly relevant with regard to Green Belt considerations.   
 
COMMENTS 
 
Key Issues 
 
(18) The proposals raise planning considerations with regard to the following: acceptability 
in relation of green belt policy; sustainability of the site as a location for windfall housing; Impact 
on the appearance of the surrounding area; impact on the amenity of surrounding occupiers; 
and transport considerations.   
 
Green Belt planning policy 
 
(19) The principle of development relates to development in the Green Belt. Dartford Local 
Plan Policy DP22 highlights that the essential characteristics of the Green Belt are its openness 
and permanence, and inappropriate development will be resisted in accordance with national 
planning policy. The starting point in the consideration is therefore whether the proposed 
development is considered to be inappropriate by national planning policy. 
 
(20) Paragraph 133 of the NPPF states that the fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to 
prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open and that the essential characteristics 
of the Green Belt are their openness and their permanence. 
 
(21) Paragraph 143 of the NPPF states that "inappropriate development is, by definition, 
harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances".  
The NPPF does provide advice on what development should be considered inappropriate and 
the exceptions to this. 
 
(22) Paragraph 145 of the NPPF advises that the construction of new buildings is 
inappropriate development but that the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does 
not result in disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building is 
considered to be an exception. Since the proposed extensions are only required in connection 
with the proposed conversion of the building to a residential use I consider that it is important 
to consider the re-use of the building under the NPPF first. Paragraph 146 of the NPPF advises 
that certain other forms of development are also not inappropriate in the Green Belt provided 
they preserve its openness and do not conflict with the purposes of including land within it.  
 
(23) Paragraph 146(e) of the NPPF advises that the material change of use of land for 
purposes, such as outdoor sport or recreation, or for cemeteries and burial grounds is not 
inappropriate. The application site and the associated paddock that the stables serve appear 
to be in use for the recreational keeping of horses (i.e. not simply grazing horses which would 
be considered an agricultural use). I am satisfied therefore that the current use of the land is 
therefore a recreational horse-related use which is considered appropriate in the Green Belt. 
However, the application seeks not only to extend and convert the existing building but also by 

Page 11 Agenda Item 6



association proposes the material change of use of the land it sits on and the curtilage within 
the red line to a residential use. I consider that this is an inappropriate use not allowed as an 
exception under paragraph 146(e). 
 
(24) Paragraph 145(d) states that the re-use of buildings that are of permanent and 
substantial construction will not be inappropriate where they preserve the openness of the 
Green Belt and do not conflict with the purpose of including land within the Green Belt. The 
applicants have submitted a structural assessment that confirms that the stable building is 
sound and does not need reconstruction. The building is built of brick and has a pitched tiled 
roof. I am satisfied therefore that the building is of a permanent and substantial construction 
and so now turn to consider where the re-use of the building as proposed would preserve the 
openness of the Green Belt and not conflict with the purposes of including the land within it. 
 
(25)   The proposal is to convert the existing stable block and so the ridge height of the 
building will not be increased. But the extension of the building to the west and the enclosure 
of the overhang leads to a larger roof which creates a larger roof structure and the appearance 
of a much more substantial building. The addition of a large domestic style porch, roof lights in 
the roof facing the access road and new windows and large patios doors in the southern 
elevation closest to Hook Green Lane and new windows in the eastern elevation facing the 
private access road will create the appearance of building which is domestic in character and 
does not appear as an agricultural or recreational building which might be expected in the Green 
Belt. 
 
(26) In addition, whilst the design of the conversion and extensions may seek to minimise 
its visual impact, this will not limit the domestic use of the unbuilt parts of the site. It is not only 
the visual and spatial impact of the building but also the domestic use of the entire curtilage 
associated with the bungalow. There is no garage or storage building associated with the 
proposal and limited internal storage which is likely to lead to pressure for external storage and 
although additions and extension could be controlled by removing permitted development 
rights, much associated domestic equipment and small storage boxes etc are not classed as 
development and would not therefore require planning permission. The plans show the removal 
of vegetation and the creation of a patio and changes in ground level introducing further un-
natural engineering works. The floor plans show a bin store (although not shown on the 
elevations) and of course there will be a need for domestic waste and recycling storage and 
collection points.  The application shows limited change to the boundary treatment of post and 
rail fencing and chain link fencing but with the removal of vegetation and no ability for the 
adjacent paddock to remain in the same ownership there is likely to be pressure for boundary 
fences or walls or non-native species planting to provide screening in the future. There would 
also be a more permanent presence on site of the occupants' vehicles which further contribute 
to a change in character of the area. 
 
(27) In addition the creation of a separate planning unit from the adjacent paddock could 
lead to an intensification of the use. The access way proposed to serve the development is also 
shown to access the paddock. There is a small timber building within the paddock that the 
applicant advises is sufficient to provide storage in connection with the paddock and stabling of 
any horses. There is also a greenhouse present within this adjacent site. I have some concerns 
that separation of the sites could result in pressure for new structures to serve the paddock and 
if the ownership were to change there could be pressure for a separate access to the paddock 
further to the north which would not require planning permission. Although these matters are 
not before Members to consider, the subdivision of land for different uses can lead to more 
paraphernalia and structure and hard surfacing not just on the application site but on the 
adjacent land too. 
 
(28) Policy DP22 also sets out criteria with regard to the re-use of lawful permanent building 
of substantial construction. The policy requires that consideration should take into account the 
character and scale of the existing buildings and advises that where character and scale are 
important to the local setting, excessive alterations and additions will not be permitted.  I have 
considered above the impact of the proposed changes on the character of the building. 
Although, it would be difficult to argue that the extensions proposed are excessive I do consider 
that they will alter the scale and character of what is at present a building of limited depth and 

Page 12Agenda Item 6



simple design which previously served as ancillary building to the use of the wider paddock 
area. I consider that the character and scale of the existing building is characteristic of a Green 
Belt recreation horse-related use but that the proposed alterations to enable its use as a 
residential dwelling changes the scale and appearance of the building and therefore I consider 
that it is no longer characteristic of an ancillary building in the Green Belt. I consider the proposal 
is therefore contrary to Policy DP22. 
 
(29) Following the above analysis I consider that the proposed re-use of the building will not 
preserve the openness of the Green Belt. The proposed development is inappropriate because 
it serves to introduce a domestic use across the application site and detrimentally affects the 
openness of the Green Belt. The design and access statement indicates that the site is well 
screened from views from the Hook Green Lane. Whilst there are trees and planting within and 
surrounding parts of the site, the existing stable and much of the land is still visible from 
surrounding roads and paths and as there is no protection of the boundary vegetation, it could 
be removed at any time thereafter exposing the site further. Any screening from plants and 
vegetation would also be reduced somewhat in the winter months. 
 
(30) I now turn to consider whether the proposal would conflict with the purposes of the 
Green Belt as required under paragraph 146.  Paragraph 134 of the NPPF states that the Green 
Belt serves five purposes: to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas; to prevent 
neighbouring towns margining into one another; to assist in safeguarding the countryside from 
encroachment; to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and to assist in 
urban regeneration by encouraging the recycling of derelict and other urban land.  
 
(31) The site is currently mostly open in character and relates in character to the open 
agricultural fields to the west and north, as well as the open playing fields of Wilmington 
Grammar School to the east, all separated by wide tree belts and hedges. The location of the 
new dwelling some 400m from the built-up area of Wilmington would lead to a spread of 
residential character and presence into an otherwise rural edge to the village. 
 
(32) I consider that the proposal would conflict with four of the purposes of the Green Belt, 
the exception being the preservation of historic towns. As the applicant points out the proposed 
site is relatively close to both Wilmington and Joydens' Wood and there are other residential 
dwellings scattered along Hook Green Lane. However, the creation of an additional residential 
curtilage in this area has an urbanising effect which causes harm by encroaching into the 
countryside. Incremental development such as this (particularly as allowing this conversion may 
lead to pressure to re-use or redevelop other similar buildings in the area) could contribute to 
sprawl of the built-up area of Dartford and the merging of Dartford and Bexley. With regard to 
urban regeneration, one of the purposes of the Council's windfall polices, CS10 and DP6 is to 
ensure that development identified in the Local Plan comes forward before unidentified sites. 
The market for housing is limited and the availability of housing on non-identified sites can slow 
the delivery on identified sites, particularly the larger strategic sites. It is these large sites that 
will also be delivering the infrastructure, such as schools and doctors which support new 
development, so a slower delivery of housing on these sites will result in a later delivery of the 
facilities on these sites. I consider therefore that the proposed development does conflict with 
the purposes of including the land within the Green Belt. 
 
(33) In conclusion I consider therefore that the development is inappropriate development 
in the Green Belt as the material change of use of the land and the proposed extension and 
conversion of the existing building fails to preserve the openness of the Green Belt and conflicts 
with the purposes of the Green Belt.  
 
(34) The applicant argues that the extensions are proportionate to the original building and 
should be considered acceptable under Green Belt policy. However, as the proposed 
extensions to the building are required in order to enable the re-use of the development and 
are secondary to the material change of use of the land I do not consider that this is the primary 
test under the NPPF or the adopted Local Plan. 
 
 

Page 13 Agenda Item 6



(35) Policy DP22 sets out criteria for assessing other harm arising from inappropriate 
development in the Green Belt.  

a) The extent of intensification of the use of the site; 
b) The impact of an increase in activity and disturbance resulting from the 

development, both on and off the site, including traffic movement and parking, 
light pollution and noise; 

c) Impact on biodiversity and wildlife  
d) Impact on visual amenity or character taking into account the extent of 

screening required 
e) Impacts arising from infrastructure required by the development. 

I have covered point (a) in the consideration above and will deal with the other harms below. 
Whether Very Special Circumstances Exist 
 
(36) Having concluded that the proposed development is inappropriate development the 
NPPF states that inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and 
should not be approved except in very special circumstances.  Paragraph 144 of the NPPF 
states: "Local planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm 
to the Green Belt. 'Very special circumstances' will not exist unless the potential harm to the 
Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is 
clearly outweighed by other considerations."  Policy DP22 of the Dartford Adopted Local Plan 
reiterates this position. 
 
(37) The applicant has not provided any reasons for the development which they consider 
may amount to Very Special Circumstances.   
 
The acceptability of use of the site for windfall housing 
 
(38) The proposal is for a new dwelling which is not identified in the Local Plan and as such 
it falls to be considered as windfall development and needs to be considered in relation to the 
tests within Core Strategy policy CS10 and DP6, and the Councils Windfall Housing SPD. 
These policies generally require developments to meet the following characteristics in order to 
be considered as an accessible location for windfall housing: development to be located on 
brownfield land;  and to be well located in relation to shops, services, employment and public 
transport; that the benefits of the proposed development should outweigh the disbenefits; and 
that there is sufficient infrastructure to meet the needs of the development; or that the proposal 
can provide new infrastructure to meet its requirements. 
 
(39) Previously developed land (or brownfield land) is defined in the NPPF as "Land which 
is or was occupied by a permanent structure, including the curtilage of the developed land 
(although it should not assumed that the whole of the curtilage should be developed) and any 
associated fixed infrastructure. This excludes: land that is or was occupied by agricultural or 
forestry buildings…..".  Since the application site contains a building that was ancillary to what 
appears to be a recreational paddock (not agricultural horse grazing), I consider that the site 
can be considered as previously developed land. 
 
(40) However the site is poorly located in relation to shops and services. The nearest bus 
stop from the site is on Leyton Cross Road, 700m to the west of the site where the B12 stops 
(Three buses per hour towards Bexleyheath and Erith). A bus stop for the 477 (two buses per 
hour to Orpington, Swanley, Dartford and Bluewater) is located in Wilmington Village 800m 
from the site to the east.  A limited range of retail facilities (one local shop and hot food 
takeaway) are available in Wilmington Village 800m to the east of the site.  Primary/secondary 
schools are located approximately 800-1000m from the site. A community hall is around 800m 
from the site although it is acknowledged that a community church is 480m from the site. The 
nearest public house, is over 1000m distant. The nearest park and play area is circa 900m from 
the site. There are limited employment opportunities in the area, with the nearest employment 
locations in Dartford and Bexleyheath some distance from the site.  In addition, the appeal site 
is accessed from a private road off of a rural lane and much of the routes to these facilities and 
public transport are unlit and without a dedicated footway. Hook Farm Lane and Broad Lane 
would be unattractive routes in the day time due to the speed of cars using these narrow roads 
but in winter or at night these would be very unappealing and potentially unsafe routes to walk 

Page 14Agenda Item 6



and cycle along. The public right of way (DR118), although offering a quieter walking route, is 
an unattractive option to access the village given the length of the journey (700m to Common 
Lane and 900m to Leyton Cross Road), lack of a dedicated footpath and lack of lighting. I 
consider that the future occupiers of the bungalow would therefore be unduly reliant on the use 
of private cars which is contrary to the objectives of Local Plan policy. As such the site does not 
represent a sustainable location for windfall housing development, as future occupiers are likely 
to be dependent on a private car.   
 
(41) The single residential unit proposed would be unlikely to result in significant impact on 
local infrastructure which would justify the refusal of planning permission but as considered 
above the availability of non-identified houses has the potential to slow the delivery of identified 
sites which bring forward the delivery of infrastructure and other regeneration benefits. 
 
(42) As Dartford is meeting the requirements for housing delivery and the provision of a five 
year housing supply set by the government the benefits of additional housing provision are 
limited. 
 
Impact on visual amenity or character of the area 
 
(43) As noted above the extensions and alterations of the building to be converted would 
create an urbanising impact upon the surrounding area which is characterised by open fields 
and trees. The proposal also indicates the removal of vegetation on the site and the residential 
use is likely to result in a more managed and domestic appearance of the land which will further 
impact on the character of this rural area.    
  
Amenity of future / existing occupiers 
 
(44) The proposed residential unit would be of sufficient size to meet the internal space 
requirements within the Nationally Described Space Standards. External amenity space would 
also be provided which would meet the requirements of future occupiers.  
  
(45) The nearest residential properties are located some distance from the site to the north, 
or on the opposite side of Hook Green Lane to the south.  This level of separation from 
neighbouring properties would be sufficient to ensure that the proposals would not result in 
undue loss of amenity to these nearest residential properties.    
 
The impact of an increase in activity and disturbance resulting from the development (including 
light pollution) 
 
(46) The proposed use would result in the creation of two separate planning units, a 
residential dwelling and curtilage and a separate paddock for horse. Although at present the 
land is in the same ownership there is no requirement under planning legislation that this should 
continue. I consider therefore that there is likely to be an intensification of the use of the access 
road and the application site and adjacent land due to the creation of two separate uses. In 
addition, the creation of a residential dwelling is likely to result in more activity associated with 
the site, such as postmen, deliveries, visitors, as well as the occupants. Activity associated with 
the residential use will also be 24 hour resulting in lighting of the building both internally making 
the building visible at night when at present it is likely to be dark. The introduction of external 
lighting will exacerbate this, introducing lighting to an area where these in none and contributing 
to the change in the character of the site and loss of openness. 
 
(47) With regard to car parking the existing hard standing area adjacent to the existing 
stables is included with the proposed residential curtilage and would be capable of 
accommodating two vehicles plus visitor parking. An electric vehicle car charging point is 
proposed within this space. This level of car parking provision would be sufficient to meet the 
requirements of the adopted Dartford Car Parking SPD.   
 
(48) However use of this space for car parking in connection with the dwelling would reduce 
the area of hard surfacing available for the remaining paddock use, and storage building to the 

Page 15 Agenda Item 6



north, and this could have the potential to increase pressure for development of further hard 
standing, which would impact on Green Belt openness, as discussed above.   
 
Impact on biodiversity and wildlife  
 
(49) The proposed plans indicate the clearance of some vegetation but this is a limited area 
and there is no change proposed to the remaining paddock. Given that the proposal is to 
convert and extend the existing building I am satisfied that there will no substantial or long term 
harm to biodiversity or wildlife. 
 
Other Issues 
 
(50) As Members will be aware, each planning application must be considered on its own 
merits. However, the applicants' agent has stated that they consider that the impact of the 
proposals on the openness of the green belt would be similar to another application at Rowhill 
Stables, around 500m to the south of the application site. Planning permission was granted 
here for the conversion of a former livery stables to a single dwellinghouse in September 2017 
(ref: 17/01680/COU). However the Rowhill Stables example differs from the application site in 
a number of respects. The Rowhill Stables were constructed in an 'O' shaped layout with an 
enclosed central courtyard which can effectively contain residential paraphernalia and the red 
line of the application site was drawn tightly around the buildings and access road, limiting any 
impact on land outside the buildings. The stables here were also used for livery and so the 
consideration took into account that the activity generated by a single dwelling would be less 
than the livery. In addition there were benefits provided in that the removal of the livery allowed 
the existing menage to return to open land reducing the amount of development in the Green 
Belt. I am satisfied therefore that there is no inconsistency in how the Council has considered 
the current application.  
 
(51)  The applicant’s agent also refers to paragraph 79 of the NPPF which seeks to avoid 
the development of isolated homes in the countryside. The agent argues that the site is not 
‘isolated’. Whether the site is ‘isolated’ in the context of the NPPF is not the key consideration 
in this case as the development fails on Green Belt grounds. 
 
FINANCIAL BENEFITS  
 
(52) Under section 75ZA of the Town and Country Planning Act officer reports to the 
Development Control Board are required to include a list of 'financial benefits' which are likely 
to be obtained by the authority as a result of the development. A 'financial benefit' must be 
recorded regardless of whether it is material to the Council's decision. Government advice is 
that the decision maker should consider whether it is a material consideration in the 
consideration of a planning application. 
 
(53) In this particular case the following are the 'financial benefits' which I am aware of: 
 
(54) Community Infrastructure Levy:  CIL is charged on the net increase in floorspace of the 
proposed development and in this case a chargeable area of 109 square metres would result 
in a CIL liability of £5422.59. However this payment may not be required as the applicant has 
indicated that development will be undertaken as a self-build project and could apply for an 
exemption under CIL. Provided that the nature of future occupation meets relevant 
requirements, self-build housing is exempt from the need to pay CIL. 
 
(55) New Homes Bonus: is a grant paid by central government to local councils to reflect 
and incentivise housing growth in their areas. It is based on the amount of extra Council Tax 
revenue raised for new homes. Allocations are set by Government each year and so the amount 
of New Homes Bonus is not fixed for this proposal.  I consider this is not a material consideration 
with regard to the determination of the planning application. 
 
 
 
 

Page 16Agenda Item 6



HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
 
(56) I have considered the application in the light of the Human Rights Act 1998. I am 
satisfied that my analysis of the issues in this case and my consequent recommendation are 
compatible with the Act. 
 
PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY 
 
(57) Due regard has been had to the Public Sector Equality Duty, as set out in Section 149 
of the Equality Act 2010. It is considered that the application proposals would not undermine 
objectives of the Duty. 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT REQUIREMENTS 
 
(58) In relation to the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment 
Regulations) 2017) the proposal is not Schedule 1 or Schedule 2 development. It is not 
considered to require a screening opinion. 
 
CONCLUSIONS AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
(59) I consider therefore that the development is considered to be inappropriate 
development in the Green Belt as the material change of use of the land and the proposed 
extension and conversion of the existing building fails to preserve the openness of the Green 
Belt and conflicts with the purposes of the Green Belt.   
 
(60) In addition I have identified other harms arising from the development. The proposed 
dwelling represent windfall housing in an unsustainable location which is likely to result in 
increased use of the private car. In addition the creation of two separate planning units is likely 
to result in an intensified use of the site and the adjacent land contrary to Policy DP22. 
 
(61) I have identified no "very special circumstances" which would outweigh the harm to the 
Green Belt and the other harms identified and therefore the proposal is contrary to national and 
adopted local planning policy. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Planning permission is refused for the following reasons: 
 
01 The proposal is considered to be inappropriate development in the Green Belt, and would 

be harmful to its openness and the purposes of the Green Belt. Very special 
circumstances have not been demonstrated to outweigh this harm and the other harms 
identified and the proposal is therefore contrary to Core Strategy Policy CS13 and Policy 
DP22 of the adopted Dartford Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
02 The benefits of providing a new dwelling are reduced by the Council's ability to 

demonstrate a 5-year housing land supply. The disbenefits of the development therefore 
clearly outweigh the benefits of developing this windfall site in terms of the poor 
accessibility of the dwelling which encourages car use, the location of a dwelling on 
Green Belt land, harm to the character and appearance of the area and harm by way of 
the intensification of the use of the land. .As such the development is contrary to policies 
CS1 and CS10 of the adopted Core Strategy, Policies DP6 of the Dartford Development 
Policies Plan and the Housing Windfall Supplementary Planning Document (2014). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17 Agenda Item 6



INFORMATIVES 
 
01 If planning permission is granted for the development which is the subject of this notice, 

liability for a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) payment is likely to arise.  Persons with 
an interest in the land are advised to consult the CIL guide on Dartford Council's Website 
(http://tinyurl.com/DartfordCIL) for information on the charge and any exemptions or 
relief, and to submit the relevant forms (available from www.planningportal.gov.uk/cil) to 
the Council before commencement to avoid additional interest or surcharges.  If liable, a 
CIL Liability Notice will be sent detailing the charges, which will be registered as a local 
land charge against the relevant land. 

 
 
 

Page 18Agenda Item 6



 
Application No:: 19/00561/COU 
 

Address :  Woodside Hook Green Lane Wilmington Kent DA2 7AJ 
 

Date: 25 September 2019 Scale: Not to Scale 
 

 

 

Hook Green

Dairy

LB

43.0m

Farmside

The Tye

HOOK GREEN LANE

T
h
e

 B
u
n

g
a
lo

wNevada

Kennels

Turnagain Lodge

@ A4

°
1:1,250

Dartford Borough Council 100025870 2019

Page 19 Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



          
   DEVELOPMENT CONTROL BOARD 
 
    10 October 2019 
 
Reference: 19/01132/FUL    Officer: Mrs B Lidster 
 
Location: 72 Wilmot Road 

Dartford 
Kent 
DA1 3BD 

 
Proposal: Erection of a two storey side and single storey rear extension 
 
Applicant: Mr Sacha Gosine 

 
Agent:  Mr Tony Angeletta 
 
Parish / Ward: Not Parished / West Hill 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approval 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
(1) No. 72 Wilmot Road is a detached 2 storey house located on the northern side of the 
road close to the junction with Raeburn Avenue. 
 
(2) To the rear of the property is a railway line. The properties either side are pairs of semi-
detached houses of different styles.  The road generally has a mix of house designs, many of 
which have had additions and alterations over the years.  
 
THE PROPOSAL 
 
(3) The proposal is for the erection of a two storey side extension together with a single 
storey rear extension. 
 
(4) The side extension is proposed to extend up to the boundary with No. 70 and would 
occupy the full depth of the house.  The front part of the ground floor to the side extension will 
be open creating a covered entrance and allowing a window in the room proposed to look out 
into this area.  
 
(5) The rear extension is proposed to extend across the width of the house and the 
proposed side extension and would have a depth of 6m.  It would have a flat roof with three 
roof windows provided. 
 
(6) Internally, the extension would provide a bedroom and an open-plan kitchen dinner and 
family room at ground floor and an additional bedroom at first floor.  
 
(7) This application is being reported to the Development Control Board as the applicant 
is a Member of the Council. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
(8) There is no relevant history. 
 
COMMENTS FROM ORGANISATIONS 
 
(9) No comments received 

Page 21 Agenda Item 7



NEIGHBOUR NOTIFICATION 
 
(10) No comments received 
 
RELEVANT POLICIES 
 
(11) Dartford Core Strategy 2011 
 
(12) Adopted Dartford Development Policies Plan 2017 

DP2: Good Design; 
DP4: Transport Access and Design 
DP5: Environmental and amenity protection; 
DP7: Borough housing stock and residential amenity  

 
(13) Dartford Parking Standards Supplementary Planning Document (SPD). 
 
COMMENTS 
 
Key Issues 
 
(14) I consider that the key issues to be the impact of the development on residential and 
visual amenities.  Additionally the number of bedrooms at the property would increase from two 
to four and as such there is a need to consider whether adequate parking is available. 
 
Impact on neighbours 
 
(15) The proposed two-storey side extension would extend right to the boundary with No. 
70 and run the full depth of the property.  No. 70 is set away from the boundary with a drive 
leading to their garage.  There are four windows within the side elevation of this adjacent 
property facing the proposed development and the applicant advises that these windows serve 
a kitchen, landing, toilet and bathroom.  They do not serve habitable rooms therefore. 
 
(16) Given that the windows within the flank of no. 70 do not serve any habitable rooms, I 
am satisfied that there would be no detrimental impact on the occupiers of this neighbouring 
property as a result of this part of the development. 
 
(17) The rear extension would be 6m in depth to both common boundaries.  Guidance in 
the preamble to Policy DP7 of the Dartford Development Policies Plan advises that the 
maximum depth for rear extension to semi-detached or terraced properties should be 3.5m.  In 
this case the property is a detached house however as the rear extension would project right 
up to the boundaries of the site, the aforementioned guidance should still be applied in my view.  
 
(18) The property to the west (no 74) has been extended to the boundary and has a single 
storey rear extension which has a depth of 3.5m.  Therefore whilst the proposed extension does 
exceed a 3.5m projection, it would only be 2.5m past the depth of the neighbours' extension.  I 
am therefore satisfied that this depth is acceptable in this case having no significant detrimental 
impacts, by way of an overshadowing or an overbearing effect, on the occupiers of No. 74. 
 
(19) No. 70 to the other side has a garage adjoining the boundary with the application 
property which extends deeper than the proposed extension.  Additionally, there is a detached 
outbuilding at the applicants' property that would be replaced by the proposed extension.  The 
rear extension would not therefore have an increased impact on no 70 by way of an 
overshadowing or overbearing effect.  
 
(20) The proposed side extension would not contain any windows within the flank elevation 
and as such, would not introduce any overlooking opportunities into neighbouring properties.   
 
(21) Taking all of the above into consideration I am satisfied that the proposed development 
would not have any significant detrimental impacts on the amenities of the residents of the 
properties either side.   

Page 22Agenda Item 7



Impact on street scene 
 
(22) The application property is a stand-alone property in terms of it's design, with the 
properties either side being of different design. 
 
(23) The proposed design is a little unusual with an undercroft to the front to provide access 
to the front door.  However given the variety of different styles and sizes of properties in the 
immediate area I am satisfied that the design of the extension would not have any detrimental 
impacts on the appearance of the property or the wider street scene. 
 
(24) I am keen to establish the exact finishing materials for the proposed extension and 
whether the existing finishing materials of the property would be retained. This is justified in this 
case because of the unique design of this property and its contribution to the street scene. I 
have suggested a condition is imposed therefore requiring submission of the details of 
materials. 
 
Parking 
 
(25) There is currently space to the front of the property for three parking spaces.  Even 
taking into account the increase in bedrooms this exceeds the parking requirements as set out 
the Councils adopted parking standards.  I therefore consider that the development will not 
result in an increase in pressure for on-street parking that could lead to a highway safety and/or 
amenity concern.  
 
HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
 
(26) I have considered the application in the light of the Human Rights Act 1998. I am 
satisfied that my analysis of the issues in this case and my consequent recommendation are 
compatible with the Act. 
 
PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY 
 
(27) Due regard has been had to the Public Sector Equality Duty, as set out in Section 149 
of the Equality Act 2010. It is considered that the application proposals would not undermine 
objectives of the Duty. 
 
CONCLUSIONS AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
(28) In my opinion this is an acceptable development having no significant detrimental 
impacts on the amenities of neighbours or the visual amenities of the area.  Adequate parking 
is already provided at the property and as such, there would be no harm to highway safety or 
amenity.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Planning permission be approved for the reasons set out in the report and subject to the 
conditions below: 
 
01 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 

from the date of this permission. 
 
01 In pursuance of Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
02 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following plans and 

documents:   
Site plan and block plan SC/01 
Proposed ground floor SC/03 
Proposed first floor SC/04 
Proposed front elevation SC/05(received 12-09-19) 
Proposed side elevation to no 70 Wilmot Road SC/06 

Page 23 Agenda Item 7



Proposed side elevation to no 74 Wilmot Road SC/06 
Proposed rear elevation SC/07 
Section A-A SC/09 

 
02 For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory form of development. 
 
03 Before commencement of the development hereby approved, details and samples of all 

materials to be used externally shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 

 
03 To ensure that the development does not harm the character and appearance of the 

existing building or the visual amenity of the locality in accordance with Policy DP2 of the 
adopted Dartford Local Plan. 

 
INFORMATIVES 
 

01 It appears that this development involves work close to a boundary, which may come 
under the terms of the Party Wall etc. Act 1996.  If it does, you will need to serve notice 
on your neighbour before undertaking any work.  It would therefore be advisable for you 
to ensure that you meet any requirements of the Act before starting any work. 

 

Page 24Agenda Item 7



 
Application No:: 19/01132/FUL 
 

Address :  72 Wilmot Road Dartford Kent DA1 3BD  
 

Date: 25 September 2019 Scale: Not to Scale 
 

 

 

7.9m

11.5m

B
M

 1
0

.2
0
m

C
H

E
S

T
E

R
F
IE

L
D

 D
R

IV
E

R
A

E
B

U
R

N
 A

V
E

N
U

EM
O

R
L

A
N

D
 A

V
E

N
U

E

B
dy

2
5

3
3

2
2

5
2

86

1
4

3
7

T
ra

c
k

3
8

4
4

7
4

6
4

1
7
a

62

4
7

7
2

2
4

3
4

1
9

1
7

98

2
1

48

1

50

EER, Boro Const, G
L Asly Const & LB Bdy

LB

9.5m

8.8m

MP 16.25
LC

SP

C
R

4
7

74

SP

@ A4

°
1:1,250

Dartford Borough Council 100025870 2019

Page 25 Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



 DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 DELEGATED LIST 
 OF APPLICATIONS DETERMINED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS  
 Excluding Ebbsfleet UDC Applications 

 Date Report Compiled: 26-Sep-2019 
 Period for Report:  29/08/2019 to 26/09/2019 

 Plan Ref 19/00942/TPO Date Issued 29/08/2019 
 Location Woodlawn New Barn Road Longfield Kent DA3 7JE  
 Proposal Application to remove and replace trees T4, T5 and T7 subject to Tree Preservation Order No.1 1988 

 Ward Longfield, New Barn & Southfleet 

 Decision Split decision; Unnecessary and unjustified 

 Officer Matthew Apperley 

 Plan Ref 19/01106/TRCON Date Issued 25/09/2019 
 Location Woodlands Church Walk Wilmington Kent DA2 7EL  
 Proposal Notification to dead wood 1 No. Ash tree and reduce fir trees (Conifers) to hedge height approx. 2.44  
 metres within Church Hill Conservation Area 

 Ward Wilmington, Sutton-at-Hone & Hawley 

 Decision No Objection 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 Plan Ref 19/00301/REM Date Issued 11/09/2019 
 Location 81 Summerhouse Drive Bexley Kent DA5 2EF  
 Proposal Reserved matters relating to layout, scale, appearance of the buildings, means of access and landscaping 
  (condition 1), levels of land (condition 4), car parking spaces (condition 6) and external materials  
 (condition 7) pursuant to outline planning permission DA/18/00901/OUT for the erection of 2 No. four  
 bedroom houses incorporating the demolition of 81 Summerhouse Drive 

 Ward Joydens Wood OLD 

 Decision Approval of details (or revised details) 

 Officer Matthew Apperley 

 Plan Ref 19/01143/OBB Date Issued 11/09/2019 
 Location The Stables Coachfields Northfleet Green Southfleet Kent   
 Proposal Consultation on an application for change of use of land from agricultural to equestrian and the erection  
 of a detached stable building, horse exerciser and horse manege within Gravesham Borough Council 

 Ward Outside Borough Boundary 

 Decision Objection/No Objection; Request Southfleet Parish Council are consulted 

 Officer Mrs Emma Eisinger 

 

 Page 1 of 18 

Page 27 Agenda Item 8



 Plan Ref 19/01119/TRCON Date Issued 10/09/2019 
 Location 3 Church Field Wilmington Kent DA2 7EJ  
 Proposal Notification within Church Hill Conservation Area for:  

  1 Golden lawsons and shrubs below, rear garden, trim the top and sides as practicable without exposing 

  woody stems or opening holes in the foliage.  

2 Lawson Cypress Hedge in the rear garden, trim the top and sides as hard as practicable without 

exposing woody stems or opening gaps in the foliage.  

 3 Liquidamber rear garden, reduce the  height and lateral spread by approx. 1m and remove deadwood 

from throughout the crown  

 4 Various on driveway opposite house, trim/cut back the growth growing towards the driveway as hard as  
 practicable without damaging major stems.  

 5 Elder on opposite side of driveway to house, fell to approx. 1m from ground level.  

6 Roadside boundary, reduce the height of the shrubs to 2m from ground level. Trim/reduce the lateral 

spread over the pavement as required to match the lower half and  reduce the lateral spread on the garden 

side by approx. 1m. 

 Ward Wilmington, Sutton-at-Hone & Hawley 

 Decision No Objection 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/00950/LDC Date Issued 05/09/2019 
 Location The Nursery Green Street Green Road Dartford Kent DA2 8DP  
 Proposal Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for proposed erection of a detached pool house and  
 swimming pool 

 Ward Longfield, New Barn & Southfleet 

 Decision Permission Required; Not permitted development 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

 Plan Ref 19/01020/TPO Date Issued 12/09/2019 
 Location Mounts Court  Mounts Road Greenhithe DA9 9LX 
 Proposal Application to reduce by 2m to the sides and no more than 1.5m from the height and sever Ivy of 1 No.  
 large Oak tree (T1) subject to Tree Preservation Order No.7 2007 

 Ward Greenhithe & Knockhall 

 Decision Consent for TPO 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/01061/TPO Date Issued 23/09/2019 
 Location The Orange Tree 6 Hawley Road Dartford Kent DA1 1NR  
 Proposal Application to reduce the crown of the tree by the selective removal of between 2-3 metres from the  
 branch tips (in practice a reduction of leaf mass of approx. 30%), lift to a height of 7-8 metres on the  
 main stem, the large branch over the chimney to be pruned with a clearance of 2-3 metres (see attached  
 mark-up photo) of 1 No. Tilia x europeae - Common Lime tree (T1) located on the boundary with the  
 nursery and pub out-buildings; remove ivy and deadwood crown of 1 No. Acer Pseudoplatanus (T2)  
 subject to Tree Preservation order No.3 1993 

 Ward Wilmington, Sutton-at-Hone & Hawley 

 Decision Consent for TPO 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/01062/TPO Date Issued 23/09/2019 
 Location 10 Chalet Close Bexley Kent DA5 2EY  
 Proposal Application to reduce in height and radial spread by 2m. Current estimated height 17m leaving at 15m.  
 Current estimated radial spread 8m leaving at 6m of 1 No. Oak tree (T1), Reduce height by 2m and  
 radial spread by 1m. Current estimated height 15m leaving at 13m. Current estimated radial spread 5m  
 leaving at 4m of 1 no. Birch tree (T2) subject to Tree Preservation order No.5 1960 

 Ward Joydens Wood 

 Decision Consent for TPO 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 

 Page 2 of 18 

Page 28Agenda Item 8



 Plan Ref 19/00732/LDC Date Issued 25/09/2019 
 Location Chalkcroft Transport Yard Green Street Green Road Dartford Kent DA2 8DX  
 Proposal Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for existing for use of Chalkcroft Yard and associated  
 vehicle maintenance workshop, as a Transport Yard for transport services (Use Class: Sui Generis) 

 Ward Longfield, New Barn & Southfleet 

 Decision LDC Refusal; Continuous sui-generis use for more than 10 years not demonstrated. 

 Officer Richard Elder 

 Plan Ref 19/01067/FUL Date Issued 23/09/2019 
 Location 38 Liverymen Walk Greenhithe Kent DA9 9GZ  
 Proposal Erection of a single storey rear extension 

 Ward Greenhithe & Knockhall 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/00947/FUL Date Issued 19/09/2019 
 Location 28 St Marys Way Longfield Kent DA3 7PD  
 Proposal Erection of single storey front and rear extensions and provision of a dormer window in rear elevation in 
 connection with providing additional rooms in the roof space 

 Ward Longfield, New Barn & Southfleet 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 Plan Ref 19/01038/FUL Date Issued 23/09/2019 
 Location Freegrove Red Street Southfleet Kent DA13 9QL  
 Proposal Demolition of existing conservatory and erection of single storey rear extension 

 Ward Longfield, New Barn & Southfleet 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 Plan Ref 19/01005/FUL Date Issued 10/09/2019 
 Location 78 Berkeley Crescent Dartford Kent DA1 1NH  
 Proposal Demolition of conservatory and chimney and erection of a single storey side/rear extension and new  
 flank ground floor windows 

 Ward Brent 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

 Plan Ref 19/01072/FUL Date Issued 25/09/2019 
 Location 1 Riverview Road Greenhithe Kent DA9 9NJ  
 Proposal Erection of single storey side extension 

 Ward Greenhithe & Knockhall 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 

 Page 3 of 18 

Page 29 Agenda Item 8



 Plan Ref 19/00915/FUL Date Issued 12/09/2019 
 Location 23 Red Lodge Road Bexley Kent DA5 2JW  
 Proposal Demolition of existing rear additions and erection of a single storey rear extension 

 Ward Joydens Wood 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 Plan Ref 19/00805/FUL Date Issued 02/09/2019 
 Location Land North Of Hedge Place Road Greenhithe Kent   
 Proposal Provision of a cold water booster, within a timber enclosure, to be installed within the Hedge Place Road 
 housing development 

 Ward Stone Castle 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Steven Bell 

 Plan Ref 19/00903/FUL Date Issued 29/08/2019 
 Location 13 & 15 Balmoral Road Sutton At Hone Kent DA4 9EZ 
 Proposal Erection of single storey front and rear extensions to both properties incorporating removal of detached  
 garage at No.13 Balmoral road, and demolition of existing single storey rear extensions, provision of  
 dormer window in rear elevation and roof lights in front elevation of 15 Balmoral Road in connection  
 with providing additional rooms in the roof space, and additional roof lights in front elevation of No.13  
 Balmoral Road 

 Ward Wilmington, Sutton-at-Hone & Hawley 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

 Plan Ref 19/00972/FUL Date Issued 04/09/2019 
 Location 213 Phoenix Place Dartford Kent DA1 2XQ  
 Proposal Conversion of garage to habitable room with associated alteration to front elevation 

 Ward Princes 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

 Plan Ref 19/00721/FUL Date Issued 02/09/2019 
 Location 43 Pentstemon Drive Swanscombe Kent DA10 0NL  
 Proposal Conversion of existing garage into habitable room together with associated alterations to front elevation  
 (retrospective application) 

 Ward Swanscombe 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

 Plan Ref 19/00960/FUL Date Issued 19/09/2019 
 Location 58 Main Road Sutton At Hone Kent DA4 9EU  
 Proposal Provision of a dormer window to the second floor in the rear face of the front roof, an entrance canopy, 
  changes to the windows on the North elevation (including a new high level window to the shower room) 

 Ward Wilmington, Sutton-at-Hone & Hawley 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Mrs Emma Eisinger 

 

 Page 4 of 18 

Page 30Agenda Item 8



 Plan Ref 17/01512/COU Date Issued 25/09/2019 
 Location Garage Rear Of 105 Burnham Road Dartford Kent DA1 5AZ  
 Proposal Change of use of detached garage to vehicle repair workshop (retrospective application) 

 Ward Town OLD 

 Decision Application Refused - Impact on local amenity through noise and disturbance; impact on local highway  
 amenity 

 Officer Matthew Apperley 

 Plan Ref 19/00789/COU Date Issued 19/09/2019 
 Location 1st & 2nd Floors 58 Spital Street Dartford Kent DA1 2DT  
 Proposal Change of use of ancillary residential accommodation at first and 2nd floor level (used in connection  
 with restaurant at ground floor level) to a small House in Multiple Occupation (HMO, class C4),  
 including external access staircase to rear. 

 Ward Town 

 Decision Application Refused - Application refused due to poor standard of amenity for future occupiers and lack 
 of provision for car / cycle parking or waste / recycling storage. 

 Officer Steve Fraser-Lim 

 Plan Ref 19/01063/FUL Date Issued 23/09/2019 
 Location 2 Landale Gardens Dartford Kent DA1 2QB  
 Proposal Provision of a dormer window in rear elevation and roof light on front elevation in connection with  
 providing additional rooms in the roof space 

 Ward Princes 

 Decision Application refused, Detrimental to the appearance of the property 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 Plan Ref 19/00970/FUL Date Issued 04/09/2019 
 Location 64 Joydens Wood Road Bexley Kent DA5 2HT  
 Proposal Extensions to existing bungalow for conversion into a four bedroom dwelling with integral garage  
 including raising height of roof for provision of dormer windows to sides, front and rear, part two/part  
 single storey rear extension, two storey side extension, single storey front extension and demolition of  
 existing detached garage 

 Ward Joydens Wood 

 Decision Application Refused - Overbearing, loss of outlook and light, contrary to policies DP2, DP5 and DP7 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

 Plan Ref 19/00705/FUL Date Issued 25/09/2019 
 Location Thornfield Arnolds Lane Sutton At Hone Kent DA4 9HE  
 Proposal Conversion and extension of the existing attached triple garage and 1-bedroom bungalow to a 2-storey  
 detached 4-bedroom dwelling house 

 Ward Wilmington, Sutton-at-Hone & Hawley 

 Decision Application Refused - Refused due to harm to greenbelt and appearance of the surrounding area 

 Officer Steve Fraser-Lim 

 Plan Ref 19/00984/FUL Date Issued 11/09/2019 
 Location 9 Sinclair Way Darenth Kent DA2 7JS  
 Proposal Provision of a dormer window in rear elevation and roof lights in front elevation in connection with  
 providing additional rooms in the roof space 

 Ward Darenth 

 Decision Application Refused - Visually obtrusive, contrary to DP2 and DP7 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

 Page 5 of 18 

Page 31 Agenda Item 8



 Plan Ref 19/01068/ADV Date Issued 24/09/2019 
 Location Unit 23A Fawkes Avenue Questor Wilmington Kent DA1 1JQ  
 Proposal Display of 1 No. fascia sign and 1 No. circular logo sign (all internally illuminated) 

 Ward Princes 

 Decision Consent for Advert. 

 Officer Richard Elder 

 Plan Ref 19/01080/VCON Date Issued 25/09/2019 
 Location Colorcon Limited Unit 6 Capstan Court Crossways Business Park Dartford Kent DA2 6QG  
 Proposal Application for variation of condition 2 of planning permission DA/16/00492/FUL to vary plans in  
 respect of the sprinkler pumphouse, water tank, car parking, cycle parking, landscaping and drainage 

 Ward Stone Castle 

 Decision Application approved 

 Officer Mrs Emma Eisinger 

 Plan Ref 19/00952/VCON Date Issued 05/09/2019 
 Location 91 - 95 Church Road Swanscombe Kent DA10 0HE  
 Proposal Application for variation of condition 2 (approved drawings) of planning permission DA/18/00444/FUL  
 in respect of change of rear roof 

 Ward Swanscombe 

 Decision Application approved 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

 Plan Ref 19/00987/VCON Date Issued 10/09/2019 
 Location 100 & 100A Mill Road Hawley Kent DA2 7RT  
 Proposal Application for variation of conditions 5 and 7 of planning permission DA/16/01088/FUL to vary the  
 parking provision and boundary treatment for 100 and 100A Mill Road and increase garden area for No.  
 100. 

 Ward Wilmington, Sutton-at-Hone & Hawley 

 Decision Application approved 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/00917/NONMAT Date Issued 05/09/2019 
 Location Acacia Hall High Street Dartford Kent DA1 1DJ  
 Proposal Non material amendment following grant of planning permission DA/18/00185/FUL in respect of  
 replacing the external windows to the existing extension on the southern side of the Darent Suite 

 Ward Brent 

 Decision Approval of non-material amendments 

 Officer Jas Bansil 

 Plan Ref 19/00966/NONMAT Date Issued 13/09/2019 
 Location Zone B Prologis Park Shield Road Dartford Kent 
 Proposal Non-material amendment following grant of planning permission DA/16/01022/REM in respect of  
 addition of Remediation Strategy - to be included as an approved document under condition 1 of the  
 original permission 

 Ward Bridge 

 Decision Approval of non-material amendments 

 Officer Steven Bell 

 

 Page 6 of 18 

Page 32Agenda Item 8



 Plan Ref 19/01153/NONMAT Date Issued 17/09/2019 
 Location Zone B Prologis Park Shield Road Dartford Kent 
 Proposal Non material amendment following grant of planning permission DA/16/01022/REM in respect of  
 amendments to site layout plan to include a minor Substation and alterations to the fence line adjacent to  
 the south-east boundary. 

 Ward Bridge 

 Decision Approval of non-material amendments 

 Officer Steven Bell 

 Plan Ref 19/01102/CDNA Date Issued 30/08/2019 
 Location Former Unwins Site  Victoria Road Dartford DA1 5AJ 
 Proposal Submission of details relating to construction method plan pursuant to condition 7 of planning  
 permission DA/17/01477/FUL for erection of a single building comprising 5 No B1 (business), B2  
 (general industrial) and B8 (storage or distribution) use units with ground and mezzanine floor levels  
 (total floor space 6922 sq. m) with associated new access road, landscaping and parking 

 Ward Town 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Richard Elder 

 Plan Ref 19/00148/CDNA Date Issued 30/08/2019 
 Location Neptune Slipway Pier Road Greenhithe Kent DA9 9NS  
 Proposal Submission of details relating to boundary walls and railing pursuant to condition 14 of planning  
 permission DA/15/01660/VCON for erection of a detached 4 bedroom house with associated parking  
 involving demolition of existing buildings on the site 

 Ward Greenhithe OLD 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Sue Wright 

 Plan Ref 19/00910/CDNA Date Issued 12/09/2019 
 Location Land Adjacent 188A Milton Road Swanscombe Kent DA10 0LX  
 Proposal Submission of details relating to external materials pursuant to condition 5 of planning permission  
 DA/15/01790/FUL for erection of a detached 3 bedroom house with associated parking 

 Ward Swanscombe 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Steve Fraser-Lim 

 Plan Ref 19/01010/CDNA Date Issued 09/09/2019 
 Location Galleon Boulevard Crossways Business Park Dartford Kent DA2 6QE  
 Proposal Submission of details relating to external material pursuant to condition 2 of planning permission  
 DA/17/00493/REM for erection of a 3 storey mixed use development comprising of an A1/A3 coffee  
 shop, an A1 retail unit, with B1 office units to the upper floors and plant and staff facilities on roof plus  
 two ancillary A1 retail single storey units (convenience store and a dry-cleaners) 

 Ward Stone Castle 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Steven Bell 

 

 Page 7 of 18 

Page 33 Agenda Item 8



 Plan Ref 19/01015/CDNA Date Issued 29/08/2019 
 Location Land Adjacent Tudor Court Green Street Green Road Dartford Kent DA1 1QF  
 Proposal Submission of details relating to management plan for reptile mitigation area pursuant to condition 4 of  
 planning permission DA/18/01127/FUL for demolition of existing garage, infilling of swimming pool and  
 erection of a detached four bedroom dwelling with associated car parking spaces 

 Ward Brent 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Steven Bell 

 Plan Ref 19/00745/CDNA Date Issued 12/09/2019 
 Location Former Greenhithe Clinic Knockhall Chase Greenhithe Kent DA9 9EN 
 Proposal Submission of details relating to surface water drainage pursuant to condition 3 of outline planning  
 permission DA/18/01573/OUT for outline planning permission DA/18/01573/OUT for erection of 4 x 3  
 bed houses and 1 x 4 bed house (5 units in total) 

 Ward Greenhithe & Knockhall 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Mrs Emma Eisinger 

 Plan Ref 19/00497/CDNA Date Issued 23/09/2019 
 Location Land South Of St Marys Road Stone Kent 
 Proposal Submission of details relating to piling design pursuant to condition 10 of planning permission  
 DA/17/02082/FUL for erection of 3 No. apartment buildings comprising 70 No. residential units with  
 associated access, parking amenity and landscaping 

 Ward Stone OLD 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Mrs Emma Eisinger 

 Plan Ref 19/01082/CDNA Date Issued 05/09/2019 
 Location Stone Lodge Complex Cotton Lane Stone Kent   
 Proposal Submission of details relating to storage and collection of waste (condition 16) and external lighting  
 (condition 18) pursuant to planning permission DA/17/02105/FUL for provision of a sports facility  
 (Rugby Club) including a two storey clubhouse, two rugby pitches with 18m high floodlights, car  
 parking, security fence, 6m high catch net, relocated substation and associated landscaping 

 Ward Stone Castle 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Mrs Emma Eisinger 

 Plan Ref 19/00912/CDNA Date Issued 02/09/2019 
 Location River Mill Primary School Central Road Dartford Kent DA1 5XR  
 Proposal Submission of details relating to code of construction practice pursuant to condition 3 of planning  
 permission DA/18/01480/FUL for erection of a 2 form entry primary school with associated access and  
 landscaping 

 Ward Town 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Steven Bell 

 

 Page 8 of 18 

Page 34Agenda Item 8



 Plan Ref 19/01195/EDCCON Date Issued 25/09/2019 
 Location Redundant Buildings Eastern Quarry Watling Street Swanscombe Kent   
 Proposal Consultation on a temporary change of use of land for use as a construction compound for the  
 production of ready mixed concrete including the installation of associated plant within Ebbsfleet  
 Development Corporation 

 Ward Ebbsfleet 

 Decision EDC - Raises Concerns; Potential for HGV traffix generation on adjacent roads 

 Officer Mrs Sonia Bunn 

 Plan Ref 19/01069/PDE Date Issued 06/09/2019 
 Location 18 Fleet Avenue Dartford Kent DA2 6NL  
 Proposal Determination pursuant to Schedule 2, Part 1 (Class A.1 (g) of the Town and Country Planning (General 
 Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as to whether prior approval is required for the erection  
 of a single storey rear extension 

 Ward Brent 

 Decision Prior Approval Not Required 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/01084/PDE Date Issued 06/09/2019 
 Location 48 Hallford Way Dartford Kent DA1 3AE  
 Proposal Determination pursuant to Schedule 2, Part 1 (Class A.1 (g) of the Town and Country Planning (General 
 Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as to whether prior approval is required for the erection  
 of a single storey rear extension 

 Ward West Hill 

 Decision Prior Approval Not Required 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/01052/PDE Date Issued 29/08/2019 
 Location 16 Bentley Close Longfield Kent DA3 7LJ  
 Proposal Determination pursuant to Schedule 2, Part 1 (Class A.1 (g) of the Town and Country Planning (General 
 Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as to whether prior approval is required for the erection  
 of a single storey rear extension 

 Ward Longfield, New Barn & Southfleet 

 Decision Prior Approval Not Required 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 Plan Ref 19/01145/PDE Date Issued 23/09/2019 
 Location 22 Ivy Close Dartford Kent DA1 1XT  
 Proposal Determination pursuant to Schedule 2, Part 1 (Class A.1 (g) of the Town and Country Planning (General 
 Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as to whether prior approval is required for the erection  
 of a single storey rear extension 

 Ward Newtown 

 Decision Prior Approval Required and Approved 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 

 Page 9 of 18 

Page 35 Agenda Item 8



 Plan Ref 19/01220/PDE Date Issued 25/09/2019 
 Location 33 Birchwood Drive Wilmington Kent DA2 7NE  
 Proposal Determination pursuant to Schedule 2, Part 1 (Class A.1 (g) of the Town and Country Planning (General 
 Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as to whether prior approval is required for the erection  
 of a single storey rear extension 

 Ward Joydens Wood 

 Decision Prior Approval Required and Refused; Eaves height exceeds the height of the eaves of the original 

property 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/01076/PDE Date Issued 06/09/2019 
 Location 57 Leyton Cross Road Wilmington Kent DA2 7AN  
 Proposal Determination pursuant to Schedule 2, Part 1 (Class A.1 (g) of the Town and Country Planning (General 
 Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as to whether prior approval is required for the erection  
 of a single storey rear extension 

 Ward Maypole & Leyton Cross 

 Decision Prior Approval Required and Refused; Side extension exceeding half the width of the original property 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/01173/EDCCON Date Issued 17/09/2019 
 Location Northfleet West Sub Station Southfleet Road Swanscombe Kent   
 Proposal Consultation on submission of Reserved Matters of siting, design, external appearance and landscaping,  
 pursuant to Conditions 2, 19, 26, 36 and 43 of outline planning permission DA/05/00308/OUT for Phase 
  4 development of 140 residential units including details of streets, buildings and structures, materials,  
 open space, car parking, noise and drainage within Ebbsfleet Development Corporation 

 Ward Ebbsfleet 

 Decision Observations made; Site layout will result in a street that is dominated by front garden parking 

 Officer Steven Bell 

 Plan Ref 19/01147/CDNA Date Issued 05/09/2019 
 Location 91 - 95 Church Road Swanscombe Kent DA10 0HE  
 Proposal Submission of details relating to demolition of rear building (condition 4), boundary treatments  
 (condition 5) and surface materials to parking area (condition 7) pursuant to planning permission  
 DA/18/00444/FUL for change of use of property from commercial use Class B1 to C3 to provide 2 No.  
 2 bedroom houses with amenity space and associated parking, incorporating erection of a two storey  
 rear extensions, with excavation at front of property for provision of windows at basement level and  
 foot bridge entrance, associated alterations, to windows and doors, and demolition of detached two  
 storey outbuilding at rear and erection of two storey rear extension at No. 95 

 Ward Swanscombe 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 10 of 18 

Page 36Agenda Item 8



Plan Ref 19/01064/CDNA Date Issued 10/09/2019 
 Location Stone Lodge Complex Cotton Lane Stone Kent   
 Proposal Submission of details relating to storage of bicycles (condition 10) and electric car charging points  
 (condition 12) pursuant to planning permission DA/17/02105/FUL for provision of a sports facility  
 (Rugby Club) including a two storey clubhouse, two rugby pitches with 18m high floodlights, car  
 parking, security fence, 6m high catch net, relocated substation and associated landscaping 

 Ward Stone Castle 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Mrs Emma Eisinger 

 Plan Ref 19/01114/CDNA Date Issued 04/09/2019 
 Location 11 Longfield Avenue Longfield Kent DA3 7LF  
 Proposal Submission of details relating to tree protection measures (condition 3) and sub structure of kitchen  
 extension (relating to trees) (Condition 4) pursuant to planning permission DA/17/01495/FUL for  
 demolition of existing garage and provision of single storey side extension to eastern side, extension to  
 and increase in height of main roof to provide first floor accommodation above existing ground floor  
 including dormer windows and rear Juliet balcony, and first floor side extension to western side 

 Ward Longfield, New Barn & Southfleet 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Steven Bell 

 Plan Ref 19/01159/CDNA Date Issued 06/09/2019 
 Location Part Phase 1 Only Land East Of Lowfield Street Dartford Kent 
 Proposal Submission of details relating to provision of satellite/cable/terrestrial television of apartment block (Part  
 Phase 1 only) pursuant to condition 15 of planning permission DA/18/1557/VCON for development of  
 Lowfield Street 

 Ward Town 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Mrs Sonia Bunn 

 Plan Ref 19/01163/CDNA Date Issued 06/09/2019 
 Location Part Phase 1 Only Land East Of Lowfield Street Dartford Kent 
 Proposal Submission of details relating to external lighting (phase 1 only) pursuant to condition 26 of planning  
 permission DA/18/01557/VCON for development of Lowfield Street 

 Ward Town 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Mrs Sonia Bunn 

 Plan Ref 19/01164/CDNA Date Issued 06/09/2019 
 Location Phase 1 Land East Of Lowfield Street Dartford Kent 
 Proposal Submission of details relating to electrical charging points (phase 1 only) pursuant to condition 27 of  
 planning permission DA/18/1557/VCON for development of Lowfield Street 

 Ward Town 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Mrs Sonia Bunn 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 11 of 18 

Page 37 Agenda Item 8



 

 Plan Ref 19/01009/CDNA Date Issued 02/09/2019 
 Location Longfield Service Station 1 - 3 Station Road Longfield Kent DA3 7QD 
 Proposal Submission of details relating to external materials pursuant to condition 7 of planning permission  
 DA/19/00160/FUL for erection of single storey extension to the north face of the existing petrol filling  
 station shop. Existing canopy over the fuel storage tanks to be exhumed and replaced with 2No. new  
 60,000 litre below ground double skin steel vessels.  Existing canopy over the forecourt replaced with  
 new installed 4.5m high from the highest forecourt level. Installation of removable bollards along both  
 existing crossings to the highway to be utilised during fuel deliveries 

 Ward Longfield, New Barn & Southfleet 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Richard Elder 

 Plan Ref 19/00967/CDNA Date Issued 10/09/2019 
 Location Land South Of St Marys Road Stone Kent 
 Proposal Submission of details relating to tree protection measures pursuant to condition 6 of planning permission 
 DA/17/02082/FUL for erection of 3 No. apartment buildings comprising 70 No. residential units with  
 associated access, parking amenity and landscaping 

 Ward Stone Castle 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Mrs Emma Eisinger 

 Plan Ref 19/01019/CDNA Date Issued 09/09/2019 
 Location UCC Coffee Riverside Industrial Estate Riverside Way Dartford Kent DA1 5BS  
 Proposal Submission of details relating to external materials pursuant to condition 6 of planning permission  
 DA/19/00261/FUL for erection of a replacement warehouse building and ancillary offices 

 Ward Town 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Steve Fraser-Lim 

 Plan Ref 18/00828/CDNA Date Issued 23/09/2019 
 Location Abbott Murex Site And Part Mill Pond Land To South Lower Hythe Street Dartford 
 Proposal Submission of details relating to hard and soft landscaping pursuant to condition 27 and boundary  
 treatments and street furniture pursuant to Condition 6 of planning permission DA/16/01601/FUL for  
 erection of 6 No blocks of between 3 and 8 storeys comprising a total of 403 dwellings (excluding area  
 containing cycle/pedestrian link next to existing DB10 bridge over River Darent and river wall treatment  
 to south of bridge as shown on drawing Overall Site Plan WH160A/17/P/10.01P Rev A. ) 

 Ward Town OLD 

 Decision Approval of Details for Conditions 

 Officer Sue Wright 

 Plan Ref 19/00964/TPO Date Issued 02/09/2019 
 Location 4 Chalet Close Bexley Kent DA5 2EY  
 Proposal Application for T1 Silver Birch: crown reduction by reducing height and average radial spread of tree by  
 approximately (2m) and (2m) respectively and prune live secondary growth points; T2 Sweet Chestnut:  
 - Fell tree subject to tree Preservation Order No.5 1960 

 Ward Joydens Wood 

 Decision Consent for TPO 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

  

 

 

 

 

 

   Page 12 of 18 

Page 38Agenda Item 8



 Plan Ref 19/00990/LDC Date Issued 10/09/2019 
 Location 28 Heathclose Road Dartford Kent DA1 2PU  
 Proposal Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for proposed conversion of existing garage to habitable 
  room 

 Ward Heath 

 Decision Planning Permission not Required 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/00905/LDC Date Issued 25/09/2019 
 Location 4 Wood Close Bexley Kent DA5 2HX  
 Proposal Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for proposed erection of a single storey rear extension 

 Ward Joydens Wood 

 Decision Planning Permission not Required 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 Plan Ref 19/00968/LDC Date Issued 04/09/2019 
 Location 37 King Edward Avenue Dartford Kent DA1 2HZ  
 Proposal Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for proposed conversion of garage into habitable room 
  with associated alteration to front elevation 

 Ward West Hill 

 Decision Planning Permission not Required 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 Plan Ref 19/01180/LDC Date Issued 10/09/2019 
 Location South House Pincroft Wood Longfield Kent DA3 7AJ  
 Proposal Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for proposed erection of a detached outbuilding 

 Ward Longfield, New Barn & Southfleet 

 Decision Planning Permission not Required 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/01091/LDC Date Issued 10/09/2019 
 Location 2 Cherry Tree Lane Wilmington Kent DA2 7AE  
 Proposal Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for proposed detached outbuilding 

 Ward Maypole & Leyton Cross 

 Decision Planning Permission not Required 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/00706/LDC Date Issued 04/09/2019 
 Location The Chapel  Constance Grove Dartford DA1 2GA 
 Proposal Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for proposed use of the first floor as a children's  
 nursery as per it's planning permission granted on 08.06.2006 under reference code DA/05/00283/FUL 

 Ward West Hill 

 Decision Planning Permission not Required 

 Officer Jas Bansil 

  

 Page 13 of 18 

Page 39 Agenda Item 8



Plan Ref 19/01120/LDC Date Issued 10/09/2019 
 Location 18 Fleet Avenue Dartford Kent DA2 6NL  
 Proposal Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for proposed dormer window with Juliette balcony in  
 rear elevation and roof lights in front elevation in connection with providing additional rooms in the roof  
 space 

 Ward Brent 

 Decision Planning Permission not Required 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/00982/FUL Date Issued 09/09/2019 
 Location 19 Shepherds Lane Dartford Kent DA1 2NL  
 Proposal Erection of a single storey rear/side extension 

 Ward West Hill 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 Plan Ref 19/00378/FUL Date Issued 20/09/2019 
 Location 3 Priory Hill Dartford Kent DA1 2BD  
 Proposal Conversion of single dwelling into 2 No. flats (comprising 1 x 1 bed and 1 x 2 bed flats) incorporating  
 erection of a second floor rear extension 

 Ward West Hill OLD 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Steve Fraser-Lim 

 Plan Ref 19/00986/FUL Date Issued 06/09/2019 
 Location 6 Gothic Close Wilmington Kent DA1 1PR  
 Proposal Demolition of detached garage and erection of a single storey side/rear extension 

 Ward Wilmington, Sutton-at-Hone & Hawley 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 Plan Ref 19/00924/FUL Date Issued 04/09/2019 
 Location 28 Watling Street Dartford Kent DA1 1RF  
 Proposal Demolition of existing outbuilding and erection of a detached Granny Annexe (with attached shed)  
 ancillary to main house 

 Ward Newtown 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

 Plan Ref 19/00951/FUL Date Issued 11/09/2019 
 Location 119 Heath Lane Dartford Kent DA1 2QF  
 Proposal Demolition of single storey side extension and erection of a two storey side extension 

 Ward Princes 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 Plan Ref 19/00954/FUL Date Issued 02/09/2019 
 Location 37 Teesdale Road Dartford Kent DA2 6LB  
 Proposal Demolition of existing side/rear single storey addition and erection of a two storey side/rear extension 

 Ward Brent 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

  

 

 

   Page 14 of 18 

 

Page 40Agenda Item 8



 Plan Ref 19/00963/FUL Date Issued 02/09/2019 
 Location 49 Fawkham Avenue Longfield Kent DA3 7HS  
 Proposal Demolition of existing conservatory and erection of a single storey rear extension 

 Ward Longfield, New Barn & Southfleet 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 Plan Ref 19/01000/FUL Date Issued 09/09/2019 
 Location 105 Woodlands Park Bexley Kent DA5 2EW  
 Proposal Demolition of existing rear conservatory and erection of a single storey rear extension 

 Ward Joydens Wood 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 Plan Ref 19/01001/FUL Date Issued 10/09/2019 
 Location 57 Broomhill Road Dartford Kent DA1 3HT  
 Proposal Erection of a single storey side extension with pitched roof over existing rear projection 

 Ward Heath 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/01027/FUL Date Issued 16/09/2019 
 Location 6 Eleanor Close Dartford Kent DA1 5GQ  
 Proposal Erection of a single storey rear extension 

 Ward Burnham 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 Plan Ref 19/01039/TPO Date Issued 17/09/2019 

 Location Limetrees Pencroft Drive Dartford Kent DA1 2PB  
 Proposal Application to re-pollard to lowest previous pollard points all surrounding Lime trees within the  
 property's land subject to Tree Preservation Order No.13 1991 

 Ward West Hill 

 Decision Refusal TPO; Unnecessary and unjustified 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 Plan Ref 19/00985/TPO Date Issued 10/09/2019 
 Location Ladies Wood (rear Of 40 Coombfield Drive) Darenth Kent  
 Proposal Application to remove 1 No. Oak tree subject to Tree Preservation Order No.6 1975 

 Ward Darenth 

 Decision Refusal TPO; Unnecessary, harmful to the visual amenities of the area and would set a precedent for the 

removal of other trees within the ancient woodland 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

 Plan Ref 19/01050/TPO Date Issued 10/09/2019 
 Location 67 Stonehill Woods Park Old London Road Upper Ruxley Sidcup Kent DA14 5FB  
 Proposal Application to crown reduce by 50% 4 No. Oak trees (T1, T2, T3 and T4) subject to Tree Preservation  
 Order No.16 1983 

 Ward Joydens Wood 

 Decision Refusal TPO; Detrimental to health of trees and detrimental visual impact 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 

  

 

 Page 15 of 18 

Page 41 Agenda Item 8



 Plan Ref 19/00792/FUL Date Issued 12/09/2019 
 Location 39 Raeburn Avenue Dartford Kent DA1 3BQ  
 Proposal Erection of a single storey rear extension with increase in depth of decking and additional roof light at  
 rear and side porch 

 Ward West Hill 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

Plan Ref 19/00999/FUL Date Issued 25/09/2019 
 Location 14 Park Cliff Road Greenhithe Kent DA9 9FX  
 Proposal Erection of a part two/part single storey side extension 

 Ward Greenhithe & Knockhall 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/01003/FUL Date Issued 13/09/2019 
 Location 170 Birchwood Road Wilmington Kent DA2 7HA  
 Proposal Erection of two storey front extensions including second storey over existing garage with new render/  
 boarding to external walls 

 Ward Joydens Wood 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

 Plan Ref 19/00998/FUL Date Issued 12/09/2019 
 Location 37 Watermans Way Greenhithe Kent DA9 9GJ  
 Proposal Conversion of garage into habitable room together with associated alterations to front and rear elevations 

 Ward Greenhithe & Knockhall 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/00943/FUL Date Issued 02/09/2019 
 Location 28 East Hill Dartford Kent DA1 1RZ  
 Proposal Erection of a front porch 

 Ward Newtown 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

 Plan Ref 19/00993/FUL Date Issued 10/09/2019 
 Location 2 Church Field Wilmington Kent DA2 7EJ  
 Proposal Conversion of an existing garages to habitable rooms together with associated alteration to front and side 
  elevation 

 Ward Wilmington, Sutton-at-Hone & Hawley 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

 Plan Ref 19/01053/FUL Date Issued 24/09/2019 
 Location 2 Alfred Road Hawley Kent DA2 7SQ  
 Proposal Erection of a part two/part single storey side extension and provision of a driveway 

 Ward Wilmington, Sutton-at-Hone & Hawley 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 

 

 Page 16 of 18 

Page 42Agenda Item 8



Plan Ref 19/00473/FUL Date Issued 24/09/2019 
 Location KC Car Sales Workshop 80A The Brent Dartford Kent DA1 1YW  
 Proposal Demolition of existing office and store and erection of new workshop to provide facility for smart  
 repairs, valeting and wheel repairs, including alterations to parking area 

 Ward Newtown OLD 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

 Plan Ref 19/00728/FUL Date Issued 30/08/2019 
 Location 113 Ladywood Road Darenth Kent DA2 7LP  
 Proposal Erection of a two storey side extension, one and a half storey rear extension with external staircase and  
 front porch 

 Ward Darenth 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

 Plan Ref 19/01045/FUL Date Issued 10/09/2019 
 Location Homewood New Barn Road Longfield Kent DA3 7JE  
 Proposal Conversion of existing integral garage into habitable room (Gym) 

 Ward Longfield, New Barn & Southfleet 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/01022/FUL Date Issued 12/09/2019 
 Location 80 Mill Road Hawley Kent DA2 7RZ  
 Proposal Erection of a single storey side/rear extension 

 Ward Wilmington, Sutton-at-Hone & Hawley 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Mrs B Lidster 

 Plan Ref 19/01023/FUL Date Issued 19/09/2019 
 Location 22 Watermans Way Greenhithe Kent DA9 9GP  
 Proposal Erection of a single storey rear extension 

 Ward Greenhithe & Knockhall 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Steve Fraser-Lim 

 Plan Ref 19/01024/FUL Date Issued 10/09/2019 
 Location 28 Gloucester Road Dartford Kent DA1 3DJ  
 Proposal Erection of a single storey rear/side extension 

 Ward West Hill 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Steve Fraser-Lim 

 Plan Ref 19/00908/FUL Date Issued 03/09/2019 
 Location 22 Birchwood Road Wilmington Kent DA2 7HE  
 Proposal Conversion of existing attached garage into habitable room with associated alterations to elevations 

 Ward Joydens Wood 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

 Page 17 of 18 

Page 43 Agenda Item 8



 Plan Ref 19/00975/FUL Date Issued 05/09/2019 
 Location 59 James Road Dartford Kent DA1 3NE  
 Proposal Erection of a two storey side extension, part two/part single storey rear extension, alterations to roof  
 from hip end to gable end for provision of a dormer window in rear elevation and roof light in front  
 elevation in connection with providing additional rooms in the roof space 

 Ward Heath 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 Plan Ref 19/00944/FUL Date Issued 30/08/2019 
 Location 15 Seaton Road Dartford Kent DA1 3LB  
 Proposal Conversion of existing integral garage into habitable room together with associated alterations to front  
 elevation 

 Ward Heath 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Abigail Lavery 

 Plan Ref 19/00879/FUL Date Issued 12/09/2019 
 Location 20A Marlborough Road Dartford Kent DA1 3EL  
 Proposal Erection of a single storey rear/side extension 

 Ward West Hill 

 Decision Application Permitted 

 Officer Samantha Mitchell 

 

 

  

 

Page 18 of 18 

Page 44Agenda Item 8


	Agenda
	 Update
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 September 2019
	6 19/00561/COU <br/> Woodside, Hook Green Lane, Wilmington, Kent
	7 19/01132/FUL <br/> 72 Wilmot Road, Dartford, Kent.
	8 Decisions Taken Under Delegated Powers

